
Our Ref: FOI9345 

 

Dear Mr Bull, 

 

Freedom of Information: Right to know request 

 

Thank you for your email on 10 June 2022, in which you asked: 

 

The Chancellor, Rt Hon Rishi Sunak, wrote to my MP Rt Hon Mel Stride on the 27th May 2022, 

indicating that he had asked the FCA for a progress report on [the matters highlighted in the 

‘Dying for a Payout’ report], and the FCA had replied: 'FCA officials advise that they are in the 

middle of a multi-firm review (based on a sample of life insurance firms) to understand further 

the approaches being taken by firms with respect to terminal illness claims under a life insurance 

policy. 

 

FOI Request 

Please can you advise the defined scope of this review, in particular: 

Planned timescale, subject areas being reviewed, including whether potential Human and 

Consumer Rights breaches are being considered? 

 

We have processed your email in line with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 

(FOIA) and our response is below. 

 

We can confirm that we hold some of the requested information. 

 

As outlined in our ‘Approach to Supervision’ published report, we take a risk-based and proportionate 

approach to supervisory work, which includes reviews such as the one we are conducting in relation to 

Terminal Illness. This means that we look to identify where harm is potentially caused and investigate 

or remediate proportionately based on the risk presented. 

 

The purpose of our information request to firms was to better understand the experience of customers 

making terminal illness claims and to understand the changes firms have made to their terminal illness 

claims process in light of a recent Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) rule change.  The 

questions asked formed the basis of the review and were as follows: 

 

1. Following the rule changes made by the DWP, has [firm] reviewed its approach to terminal 

illness claims? 

2. How is [firm] ensuring fair treatment of this vulnerable customer group through the claims 

process? In your answer, please give consideration to each of the outcomes stated above? [The 

outcomes required were better understanding of customers’ claims experience and changes to 

process following a DWP rule change.] 

3. To support your answer to question 2 please provide MI across 2020 and 2021 (year to date) or 

claims for terminal illness benefit for each life product offering terminal illness cover. 

Please provide: 

a) Number of claims received 

b) Number of claims received that followed a referral from initial contact (if available please 

state if the information provided forms part of your regular reported MI). 

c) Percentage of claims that resulted in a terminal illness pay-out 

d) Percentage of claims that were deferred following the initial contact, that resulted in a 

terminal illness pay-out (if available). 

e) Breakdown of main (top 5) terminal illnesses of successful claims. 

f) Breakdown of main (top 5) terminal illnesses of unsuccessful claims. 

4. [Firms] current policy wording together with any other documentation provided, including pre-

contractual information. 

5. The wording of [firms] current proof of morbidity definition. 

https://www.ticampaign.com/_files/ugd/b0c690_c3e12c43f91f43e79c3b5042b12b84e8.pdf?index=true


6. Any changes [firm] are considering making to the definition of new policies. 

7. Whether [firm] are considering making changes to the definition in existing policies, and if so, 

the legal basis on which [firm] will make those changes and how those changes will be 

communicated to consumers. 

 

We currently estimate our review will be completed no later than the end of the year.  We are 

considering the responses we received from firms involved in this review and anticipate further follow-

up enquiries and analysis to be required. 

 

Regarding the question around whether ‘Human or Consumer Rights breaches’ are being considered, 

we can advise that the FCA considers whether our framework of principles and rules have been met in 

all reviews.   

Your right to complain under FOIA 

 

If you are unhappy with this response, you have the right to request an internal review.  To do so, 

please contact us within 40 working days of the date of this response at 

FreedomofInformationAppeals@fca.org.uk. 

 

If you are not content with the outcome of the internal review, you also have a right of appeal to the 

Information Commissioner by phone or on their website at: 

Telephone: 0303 123 1113 

Website: www.ico.org.uk 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

Information Disclosure Team / Operations 

 

12 Endeavour Square 

London 

E20 1JN 

 

www.fca.org.uk 

 
Follow us: 
 

  
 

 

 

 
This communication and any attachments may contain personal information. For more information about how and 
why we use personal information and who to contact with any queries about this, please see our privacy notices: 
FCA Privacy Notice (https://www.fca.org.uk/data-protection) and PSR Privacy Notice 
(https://www.psr.org.uk/cookies-privacy-and-data-protection). 
 
This communication and any attachments contain information which is confidential and may be subject to legal 
privilege. It is for intended recipients only. If you are not the intended recipient you must not copy, distribute, 
publish, rely on or otherwise use it without our consent. Some of our communications may contain confidential 
information which it could be a criminal offence for you to disclose or use without authority. If you have received 
this email in error please notify postmaster@fca.org.uk immediately and delete the email from your computer. 
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Further information on the classification and handling of FCA information can be found on the FCA website 
(http://www.fca.org.uk/site-info/legal/fca-classified-information). 
 
The FCA (or, if this email originates from the Payment Systems Regulator Limited, the FCA on behalf of the Payment 
Systems Regulator Limited / the Payment Systems Regulator Limited) reserves the right to monitor all email 
communications for compliance with legal, regulatory and professional standards. 
 
This email is not intended to nor should it be taken to create any legal relations or contractual relationships. This 
email has originated from the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), or the Payment Systems Regulator Limited. 
 
The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) is registered as a limited company in England and Wales No. 1920623. 
Registered office: 12 Endeavour Square, Stratford, London, E20 1JN, United Kingdom 
 
The Payment Systems Regulator Limited is registered as a limited company in England and Wales No. 8970864. 
Registered office: 12 Endeavour Square, Stratford, London, E20 1JN, United Kingdom 
 
Switchboard 020 7066 1000 
 
Web Site http://www.fca.org.uk (FCA); http://www.psr.org.uk (the Payment Systems Regulator Limited) 
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